
Regular Council Meeting Agenda January 23, 2024 

 
 

AGENDA 
Bentley Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday January 23, 2024 
6:30pm Regular Meeting 

 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting at 6:00 pm – please see separately posted 

agenda on the Town of Bentley website. 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
 

2. Indigenous Acknowledgement 
 
“We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and Home of Metis 
Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement involving mutuality 
and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, Metis, Inuit, and non-First 
Nations whose footsteps have marked these lands.” 
 

 
3. Amendments & Acceptance of Agenda 

 
 

4. Adoption of Previous Minutes:  
 

a) Regular Meeting of Council January 9, 2024 
 
 

5. Financial: 
 

a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20240011 to 20240032 
 

 
6. Unfinished Business 

 
a) Bentley Community Hall request for funding stair project (Municipal 

Historic Building) (Delegation Bentley Community Hall Board) 
 

- Funding for stair replacement (Continued from 2024 Annual, Recreation, 
Cultural, Historical and Tourism Funding Support Grants) 

 
b) Bentley Minor Hockey (Delegation Bentley Minor Hockey) 

 
- Funding for Canuck Room Bathroom Renovation (Continued from  2024 Annual 

Recreation, Cultural, Historical and Tourism Funding Support Grants) 
 
 
 
 



Regular Council Meeting Agenda January 23, 2024 

7. New Business 
 

a) Bentley Minor Hockey  
- Provincial Tournament and Support 
- Bentley Minor Hockey Association Structure 

 
b) Medicine Lodge Ski Hill – Formal Response from Medicine Lodge Ski Hill 

regarding masterplan. 
 

c) Public Works Report 
 

- General Public Works Report 
- Parks & Recreation Report 
- Water Meter Radio and Handheld Replacement Strategy 

 
 

8. Correspondence 
 

a) Lacombe County Council Highlights January 11, 2024 
b) Information Bulletin – Monkey Top Fire 

 
 

9. Other Business 
 

a) Calgary Outdoor Adventure Trade Show – March 16 & 17 2024 
 
- ask from Lacombe Tourism for CAO of Bentley to attend the tradeshow  
  with Lacombe Tourism to promote Bentley and Central Alberta 
 
- Austin Weaver is unable to attend due to other commitments for Lacombe  
  Tourism, he, and his board have suggested that I attend with them and can.  
  utilize the opportunity to promote Bentley and the Area 
 
- Seeking Council approval for attendance at the Tradeshow 
 

  
10. Adjournment       



Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 9, 2024 
 

 

Minutes of the Regular of the Council of the Town of Bentley 

 January 9, 2024 

 
Date and Place  Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Town of Bentley 

held Tuesday, January  9, 2024, at 6:30 p.m., in the Bentley Municipal Office 
 
 

In Attendance Mayor Greg Rathjen 
Deputy Mayor Eastman 

   Councillor Grimsdale 
   Councillor Valiquette 
   Councillor Hansen 
   CAO, Marc Fortais 
 
   
Call to Order Mayor Rathjen called the regular meeting to order at 6:30pm 

 

Indigenous  
Acknowledgement “We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and 

Home of Metis Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement 
involving mutuality and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, 
Metis, Inuit, and non-First Nations whose footsteps have marked these 
lands.” 

Read by Mayor Rathjen 
 
 

Agenda 

Motion 1/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen,  “THAT the agenda of 
the January 9, 2024, Regular Meeting of Mayor and Council be amended to 
include an additional item as other business to discuss The Canada Green 
and Inclusive Buildings Program Application and the Federal Governments 
lack of response to the application and next steps.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 2/2024 Moved by Councillor Eastman, “THAT the amended 
agenda of the January 9, 2024, Regular Meeting of Mayor and Council be 
accepted.” 

        Carried 

Previous Minutes   



Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 9, 2024 
 

Motion 3/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the minutes of 
the December 12, 2023, Regular Meeting of Council be accepted.” 
 
        Carried 
 
 

Financial  
a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20230892 to 20240011 

Motion 4/2024 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT Cheques No. 
20230892 to 20240011 be received for information.” 

           Carried 

 

b) Mayor and Council Remuneration Listings 
- December paid in January. 

 

Motion 5/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT Mayor and 
Council Remuneration Listings for December and paid in January be 
received for information.” 

        Carried 

 

New Business  

a) 2024 Revised Budget Presentation 

CAO Marc Fortais provided a detailed presentation showing the approved 
changes made by Mayor and Council to the 2024 preliminary budget during 
the December 12, 2023, presentation of the 2024 preliminary budget: 

Key changes included: 

- The removal of Oxford Park washroom project for 2024 
- Changing the CPI Index increase from the recommended 3.8% 

average to 2.5% for wages, salaries, and benefits. 

The result of the changes creates an anticipated surplus of $104,445.00 
resulting from a total of $3,044,634.00 total revenue less expenses of 
$2,940,189.00. 

Motion 6/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the revised 2024 
budget presentation be accepted as information as it was already approved 
at the December 12, 2024, budget meeting; AND 

THAT CAO Marc Fortais be directed to add to the agenda a line item for 
Mayor and Council to further discuss Oxford Park at the first meeting in 
February.” 

        Carried 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 9, 2024 
 

b) 2024 Annual Recreation, Cultural, Historical and Tourism Funding 
Support Grants 

Motion 7/2024 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT a 2024 grant 
of $8,081.00 be approved through the recreation, cultural, historical and 
tourism funding program to support the Medicine Lodge Ski Club’s 
application for the purchase of equipment as received.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 8/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Valiquette, “THAT a 2024 
grant of $3,718.00 be approved through the recreation, cultural, historical 
and tourism funding support program to support the Bentley Museum 
Society’s application for support of a second summer student as received.” 

        Carried 

It should be noted that Councillor Grimsdale excused himself prior to 
the discussion and vote taking place regarding the Bentley Museum 
Society’s request as he serves as a council representative for those 
board meetings and therefore did not partake in the discussion or vote 
due to a possible conflict of interest. 

 

Motion 9/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Valiquette, “THAT the 
application received from minor hockey for a 2024 grant of $19,650.00 
received through the recreation, cultural, historical and tourism funding 
program to support further renovations of the canuck room,  be put on hold 
until such a time, that minor hockey can come and present to Mayor and 
Council further information regarding their significant grant request; AND 

THAT CAO Marc Fortais be directed to request minor hockey to present as 
soon as possible at a regular meeting of Mayor and Council.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 10/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT a 2024 grant of 
$1,500.00 be approved through the recreation, cultural, historical and 
tourism funding support program to support the Bentley Library Society to 
host a petting zoo for the 2024 rodeo weekend as received.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 11/2024 Moved by Councillor Eastman, “THAT a 2024 grant of 
$1,750.00 be approved through the recreation, cultural, historical and 
tourism funding support program to support the Bentley Municipal Library to 
host the 2024 mini libraries program as received.” 

        Carried 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 9, 2024 
 

It should be noted that Councillor Hansen excused herself prior to the 
discussion and vote taking place regarding the Bentley Municipal 
Library as she serves as the council representative to the board and 
therefore did not take place in the discussion or vote due to a possible 
conflict of interest. 

 

Motion 12/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the application 
received from the Bentley Farmers Market for a 2024 grant of $5,000.00 
received through the recreation, cultural, historical and tourism funding 
program to support the market for fencing, staffing and security costs, be put 
on hold until such a time as an additional full breakdown of revenue and 
expenditure is provided to Mayor and Council; AND 

THAT CAO Marc Fortais be directed to request Bentley Farmers Market to 
provide that detailed breakdown as soon as possible.” 

        Carried 

 

Prior to the next application being considered for the Bentley 
Community Van Society, Mayor Rathjen declared a potential conflict of 
interest due to his role as the chair of the Community Van Society and 
removed himself from the meeting prior to any discussion and or vote 
occurring on this item.  

Deputy Mayor Valiquette assumed the role as chair of the regular 
council meeting due to Mayor Rathjen removing himself from the 
meeting. 

Motion 13/2024 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT a 2024 grant 
of $2,000 be approved through the recreation, cultural, historical and tourism 
funding support program to support the Bentley Community Van Society for 
support of operating costs associated to the provision of the program.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 14/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the application 
from Bentley Minor Ball for a 2024 grant of $5,000 received through the 
recreation, cultural, historical and tourism funding program to support 
diamond improvements, not be approved through the program; AND 

THAT the funds required for diamond improvements, be funded through the 
operational budget for Parks and Rec as there are sufficient funds within that 
budget to undertake such work; AND  

THAT the CAO or his representative be directed to work with minor ball to 
facilitate the required improvements up to a maximum of $5,000.” 

        Carried 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 9, 2024 
 

Motion 15/2024 Moved by Councillor Eastman, “THAT a 2024 grant of 
$2,000 be approved through the recreation, cultural, historical and tourism 
funding support program to support the Bentley Rodeo Committee to fund 
the high point saddle for the 2024 Bentley Rodeo.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 16/2024 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT a 2024 grant 
of $2,500 be approved through the recreation, cultural, historical and tourism 
funding support program to support the Kruizin West Bentley Show N Shine 
to fund operational costs such as trophies, movie night, posters and 
advertising.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 17/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the application 
from the Bentley Community Hall for a 2024 grant of $20,000 received 
through the recreation, cultural, historical and tourism funding program to 
support a major stair replacement, be removed from this grant program for 
consideration; AND 

THAT it will be considered separately by Mayor and Council due to the 
significant nature of the request; AND 

THAT CAO Marc Fortais be directed to request that the Bentley Community 
Hall come and present to Mayor and Council at the January 23, 2023, 
regular meeting of mayor and council, so that the request can be considered 
more thoroughly.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 18/2024 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT the letter 
submitted by BGC indicating that they intend to submit a future grant request 
between $8,000 and $10,000 to support a program regarding childcare at 
the Bentley School, be accepted as information.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 19/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT a 2024 grant of 
$5,000 be approved through the recreation, cultural, historical and tourism 
funding support program to support the Bentley Curling Club to fund POS 
upgrades, and a Beveridge cooler replacement.” 

        Carried 

 

 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 9, 2024 
 

c) Rita Mueller Donation $250.000 

Motion 20/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the donation 
received from Rita Mueller in the amount of $250,000, be placed in a 
restricted reserve, that can only be used to support Bentley Minor Soccer 
through initiatives to improve the league and its presence in Bentley, such 
as field upgrades, or the construction of a new field.”  

        Carried  

 

Correspondence 

a) Lacombe County Council Highlights – November 23, 2023 
b) Lacombe County Council Highlights – December 14. 2023 

 

Motion 21/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT CAO Marc 
Fortais be directed to reach out to CAO Timmons from Lacombe County to 
find out additional details regarding the Gull Lake trail system being 
contemplated.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 22/2024 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT 
correspondence items a) to b) be accepted as information.” 

        Carried 

 

Other Business 

a) ABMunis webinar on Local Government Fiscal Framework (LGFF) 
- CAO Fortais provided an overview on the importance of 

understanding the LGFF allocations process. 

Motion 23/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT Councillor 
Grimsdale be approved to attend and be compensated for his attendance at 
the January 18, 2024, AB Munis seminar on Local Government Fiscal 
Framework.” 

        Carried 

b) Canada Green and Inclusive Buildings  
 

- Mayor Rathjen provided an update on his conversations with 
Blaine Calkins Office and the Federal Ministers office. 
 

- Councillor Hansen voiced some concerns regarding the 
continued lack of response to our requests for a meeting. 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 9, 2024 
 

Motion 24/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT Mayor Rathjen, 
supported by Councillor Grimsdale work with CAO Marc Fortais to continue 
to push the Federal Minister and Blaine Calkins Office to set up a meeting 
between the Town of Bentley and the Ministers office regarding the Canada 
Green and Inclusive Buildings program and to ask why the Town of Bentley 
continues to be ignored.” 

        Carried 

 

Council Reports 

a) Greg Rathjen 
b) Deputy Mayor Valiquette 
c) Councillor Hansen 
d) Councillor Eastman 
e) Councillor Grimsdale 

 

Motion 25/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Valiquette, “THAT the 
December council reports be accepted as information.” 

        Carried 

 

Adjournment  
 Mayor Rathjen adjourned the January 9, 2024 Regular Council Meeting 

at 7:56pm 
  
         Carried 

      
 
 
 
  
_________________________    _________________________ 

Mayor Greg Rathjen      CAO Marc Fortais 





























WHAT NOW? WHAT’S NEXT?
Building from the Medicine Lodge Ski Hill Master Plan

Medicine Lodge Ski Club - 23 January, 2024



THANK YOU!
● For your continued 

support.
● For your engagement 

and interest.
● For your time today.
● For helping to shape our 

bright future!



THE MASTER PLAN
● A big effort!
● Insight, ideas and 

guidance.
● Adopted by Council 

Spring 2023.
● Let’s blow the dust off!
● “What’s next?”



THE MASTER PLAN

our
common
ground!



CLUB FUNCTION & GOVERNANCE
● Capacity issues…
● Paid staff might be part 

of the solution.
● First: Grow our 

Volunteer Base!
● Harness energy, build 

community, share the 
burden.

● Culture change.



SKI HILL & FACILITY OPERATIONS
● Upgrades and 

Improvements.
● Reliable and safe lifts.
● Day lodge 

improvements.
● Other equipment and 

infrastructure.
● Snowmaking?



A REGIONAL ATTRACTION!
● Real fun. Right here!
● Local focus, regional 

reach.
● Supporting the local 

economy.
● Increase the “right 

kind” of marketing.
● Fundraising - capitalize 

on our importance!



OTHER ACTIVITIES
● Master Plan - options for 

many different uses.
● MLSC - focus on skiing!
● We would like to be 

involved, supportive.
● Honouring history, 

heritage, and culture.
● Willing partners for 

reconciliation.



GOOD NEIGHBOURS!
● We are proud of our role 

in this community!
● Strengthening 

connections.
● Building relationships.
● Sharing respect.



WORKING WITH BENTLEY
● A very special place.
● We are tenants on & 

stewards of Town land.
● When we succeed, 

Bentley succeeds!
● THANK YOU for all your 

support!
● Please protect the Ski 

Hill property!



SEE YOU ON THE HILL!

Questions?



Council / Public Works
Report

January 23, 2024



Water
• September 2023 Water 

Summary
There was no 
analyzing done 
in this month 

Repaired broken conduit
Between Pump House and
Injector Building

No failed Bacteria 

results



• October 2023 Water 
Summary
There was no analyzing 
done in this month 

There were no 
operational problems, 
incidents, or concerns.

No failed Bacteria 
results



• November 2023 Water 
Summary
There was no analyzing 
done in this month 

There were no 
operational problems, 
incidents, or concerns.

No failed Bacteria 

results



• December 2023 Water 
Summary
There was no analyzing 
done in this month 

Air Lift and CL2 Shock of 
Well 3
Clear Well Butterfly 
Valve, Refurbished, 
Tested, Recertified 

No failed Bacteria 
results



Water Treatment Plant

18” Butterfly Valve

Together with Wolseley and 
Universal Machine the Butterfly 
Valve was rebuilt, pressure 
tested and recertified. 

Divers will return to switch this 
valve with the second valve still 
in the Clear Well.



Power/Control Cables 
• Conduits running between the Pump 

House and Injector Building 
compromised during 2012 Water Well 
3 installation

• Conduit was daylighted
• Broken sections were repaired temporarily 

in September (Outlaw Electric) 
• Tech Cable will replace the conduit in the 

spring.
• We will relocate the lines further to the 

west to avoid further issues 

Annual Hydrant Testing & Flushing
• Testing and maintenance was done in October 



Well 3
• December 5th Well 3, Cl2 shocked and air 

lifted.
• 1000 Liters of sodium hyper chloride used to 

sanitize.
• 50’ airline was dropped down the well, 

forcing sediment from the bottom using an 
Industrial compressor. 

• 1 section of pipe 
     was replaced as
     well as a coupler.
• Well pump and pitless
• adaptor were reused. 



50th Street sewer breaks
• Both sections of broken clay pipe were removed and replaced with PVC. 
• Asphalt patching will be done this summer. 

Wastewater



Toolcat Sander 
• Buyers 4.4 cu ft Sander was purchased 

for small sanding jobs. (Main St, Bike 
Path, Extensions etc.)

Equipment

Roads, Streets & Sidewalks
• Snow Removal, no issues this year, mild snowfalls so far. 
• There is a Sand Bin for residents, it is located outside the 

Public Works yard gate, it is provided for residents' ice 
issues.   

Annual Wastewater Analytical Testing  
• 3 Grab samples were taken from the river sent to KaizenLab (November 2023) 
• AE&P Maximum Allowable Concentration limits were achieved before release 
• 3-week release began on November 16, the Outfall was closed on December 7. 
• Release was delayed due to low river level; AE&P suggested the delay to lessen the possible impact on the 

environment. 



Miscellaneous
Campground Washrooms
The concrete pad located outside of the 
washroom doors was removed due to 
heaving, it was becoming difficult to open 
the doors. 
Town Hall Park Tree
• 12’ Blue Spruce Tree Purchased from 
     Wolf’s Botanical and planted in the
     Town Hall Park. (Christmas Tree)

Town Hall Park Washroom
• We have received a quote from Habitat Systems $146,113.00
• Eagle Builders has also been approached to get a quote. 



Arena Wall
• KCB Construction has been hired
    to repair the wall on the Arena. 
    The tin had to be brought in from B.C. 
    as the color used prior was discontinued.
    Fortunately, Kevin Bejima owner of KCB 
    reached out to a contact of his that had 
    an old roll we could purchase. 
    Once the panels are built, KCB will install
    them. Most likely closer to the spring. 

 



Wastewater Labs





Parks & Safety Update

January 23, 2024



Tree Planting on 52nd Street

- In the early summer 5 additional Purple Spire Columnar 
Crabapple trees are to planted along 52nd Street at the 
locations shown. Left over budgeted funds will be used 
to plant additional trees near the Hwy 12 entrance sign.
 
- Trees come with 1-year warranty and will be watered 
and fertilized throughout the summer.

- Trees will be staked for one year and extra soil will be 
brought in around the root balls just like the trees that 
were planted in 2023.

 

- Administration has applied 
for the Community 
Naturalization and Tree 
Planting Grant through Fortis 
Alberta for this project.



- In September 2023, 32 trees along 50th Ave between 46 Street 
and 47 Street were diagnosed with European Elm Scale. An 
additional 16 trees along 50th Ave had evidence of Elm Scale.

- Wild Rose Tree Service has been contracted to begin treating 
all impacted trees with TreeAzin insecticide sometime around 
June 2024. TreeAzin is a systematic insecticide that is injected 
near the base of the trees and does not pose any serious risk to 
people, pets or wildlife. 

- The initial treatment should eliminate about 80% of the pests. 
A second treatment will be applied in 2025 and trees will be 
assessed in 2026 for potential spot treatment.

- Wild Rose Tree Service comes highly recommended by 
contractors in the industry. They have conducted treatments for 
the City of Calgary and many other municipalities around Central 
Alberta.

- Additionally, these trees will be watered in with a balanced 
fertilizer each Spring for the next several years to assist their 
recovery.

Treatment of Dutch Elm



50th Ave Playground Railing

- A new railing has been installed on the 50th Ave playground to meet CSA 
standards.



Safety Update

Working on a Health and Safety Policy that will cover:

- New hire orientation 
- Hiring of contractors
- PPE & training requirements
- Incident reporting & investigation 
- Safety inspections
- Individual roles & responsibilities 
- OH&S compliance
- Documentation & record keeping
- Various other safety related topics

Continuing to conduct quarterly safety meetings discussing a variety of 
topics and develop SOP’s and Hazard Assessments for specific types of 
work



WATER METER RADIO AND 
HANDHELD REPLACEMENT 

STRATEGY



WHY IS IT IMPORTANT TO REPLACE OUR CURRENT 
RADIOS AND HANDHELD?

• CURRENT HANDHELD WILL ONLY COMMUNICATE WITH THE OLD AUTOREAD SOFTWARE, THIS FORCES MANUAL 
INPUTS FOR UTILITY BILLING WHICH IS VERY TIME CONSUMING.

• EXISTING AUTOREAD VERSION IS BEING PHASED OUT BY MUNIWARE, SOON IT WILL NO LONGER BE 
SUPPORTED. 

• RADIOS ARE NEARING THE END OF THEIR LIFE EXPECTANCY(20 YEARS) INSTALLED IN 2005 & BEFORE.

• SOME RADIOS HAVE STARTED TO FAIL WHICH REQUIRES “RE-READS” TO BE DONE. INCREASING MAN HOURS 
PER BILLING CYCLE

• CURRENT HANDHELD BATTERY IS FAILING, REQUIRES 2-3 BATTERY CHARGES TO COMPLETE UTILITY COLLECTION 
ROUTES.



WHY IS IT IMPORTANT TO REPLACE OUR CURRENT 
RADIOS AND HANDHELD?

• UTILITY BILLING GENERATES A SIGNIFICANT AMOUNT OF REVENUE FOR THE TOWN. ENSURING 
THAT THE UTILITY BILLS ARE COLLECTED, INPUT, AND BILLED ACCURATELY AND EFFICIENTLY IS 
ESSENTIAL.

• UPDATING OUR EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE WILL STREAMLINE THE BILLING PROCESS, WHICH 
WILL ALLOW APPROXIMATELY 34 HOURS TO BE ALLOCATED TO OTHER ADMINISTRATIONAL 
TASKS PER BILLING CYCLE(BI-MONTHLY). THIS INCREASES EFFICIENCY NOT ONLY TO UTILITY 
BILLING BUT TO OTHER ASPECTS OF ADMINISTRATION.

• CURRENTLY THIS PROCESS TAKES 44 HOURS TO COMPLETE PER BILLING CYCLE.



ANNUAL REVENUE GENERATED FROM UTILITY BILLING

• 2020 $172,769.17

• 2021 $171,316.94

• 2022 $167,006.32

• 2023 $146,601.46 + $26,769.53 (YEAR END BILLING) = $173,370.99

• 4 YEAR AVERAGE = $171,116.00



CURRENT UTILITY BILLING PROCESS

1. UTILITY READS & RE-READS: THIS PROCESS IS COMPLETED BY PUBLIC WORKS PERSONNEL VIA DRIVE BY METHOD , 
TAKING 4 HOURS ON AVERAGE.

2. PRINT WALK REPORT FOR ALL ROUTES

3. MANUALLY INPUT THE READS ONE BY ONE FROM THE HANDHELD INTO THE WALK REPORTS

4. MANUALLY INPUT THE WALK REPORTS INDIVIDUALLY INTO EVERY ACCOUNT (425) IN THE MUNIWARE SYSTEM

5. BILLS ARE THEN CALCULATED, REVIEWED AND PRINTED

STEPS 2-5 REQUIRE ON AVERAGE 40 HOURS TO COMPLETE

TOTAL HOURS REQUIRED PER BILLING CYCLE: 44 HOURS

ANNUAL HOURS REQUIRED FOR UTILITY BILLING: 264 HOURS



WHAT THE NEW PROCESS WOULD LOOK LIKE

1. UTILITY READS: COMPLETED VIA DRIVE BY METHOD BY PUBLIC WORKS PERSONNEL. 1-2 HOURS FOR COMPLETION. 
THIS ESTIMATE IS BASED OFF THE TIME REQUIRED WHEN OUR SYSTEM WAS FULLY FUNCTIONAL

2. PLACE HANDHELD ON RECEIVING STATION: INFORMATION FROM HANDHELD WILL AUTOMATICALLY START 
TRANSFERRING INTO THE AUTOREAD PROGRAM. MUNIWARE WILL AUTONOMOUSLY UPDATE ACCOUNT 
INFORMATION AND GENERATE UTILITY BILLS.

3. BILLS WILL BE PRINTED OFF AND MAILED. 8 HOURS FOR COMPLETION

TOTAL HOURS REQUIRED PER BILLING CYCLE: 9-10 HOURS

ANNUAL HOURS REQUIRED FOR UTILITY BILLING: 54-60 HOURS

ON AVERAGE 204 HOURS WILL BE REDISTRIBUTED TO OTHER ADMINISTRATION AND PUBLIC WORKS TASKS ANNUALLY



CURRENT EQUIPMENT

SENSUS SRII METER AND REGISTER

• PRIMARILY USED THROUGHOUT OUR SYSTEM, SOME IPEARL 
METERS HAVE BEEN INSTALLED(IPEARL METERS ARE COMPATIBLE 
WITH 510-M RADIOS)

• POSITIVE DISPLACEMENT MAGNETIC METER

• DURABLE, EASILY MAINTAINED AND REPAIRED, COMPATIBLE WITH 
ALL SENSUS RADIOS AND OPTIONAL REGISTER UPGRADES EX. 
DIGITAL DISPLAY REGISTERS

• ANALOG REGISTER: NO BATTERY, NO MAINTENANCE.



CURRENT EQUIPMENT

SENSUS AR 5502 AUTO READ HANDHELD DEVICE

• PURCHASED IN 2012

• WILL NO LONGER BE SUPPORTED BY NEW AUTOREAD 
SOFTWARE UPDATE

• BATTERY NO LONGER HOLDS ENOUGH CHARGE TO COMPLETE 
UTILITY READ ROUTES IN A SINGLE ATTEMPT



CURRENT EQUIPMENT

SENSUS MXU 505-C

• PURCHASED AND INSTALLED IN 2005 WITH A 20-YEAR LIFE 
EXPECTANCY 

• SOME OF OUR CURRENT RADIOS HAVE ALREADY BEGUN TO 
SHOW SIGNS OF FAILURE EX. RE-READS, NO COMMUNICATION, 
MULTIPLE ATTEMPTS TO COLLECT READ INFORMATION.



PROPOSED NEW EQUIPMENT

FL7502-RF FIELD LOGIC HANDHELD DEVICE

• WILL COMMUNICATE WITH EXISTING 505-C MXU RADIOS 
AS WELL AS THE NEW 510-M FLEXNET RADIOS

• REQUIRED TO PROGRAM AND ACTIVATE NEW RADIOS

• COMPATIBLE WITH NEW AUTOREAD SOFTWARE

• 2-YEAR MANUFACTURES WARRANTY

• REPLACEABLE BATTERY



PROPOSED NEW EQUIPMENT

SENSUS FLEXNET 510-M

• COMPATIBLE WITH SRII METERS AND REGISTERS

• CURRENTLY HAVE 15 BEING USED IN OUR SYSTEM 

• 20-YEAR BATTERY LIFE WARRANTY

• 10 YEARS FULL REPLACEMENT

• YEARS 11-20 PRO RATED REPLACEMENT VALUE



COST OF REPLACEMENT

Item Units Price Total
FL7502-RF FieldLogic Handheld Device 1 16,727.17$   16,727.17$     
Flexnet Smartpoint 510 - M (Radios) 410 236.91$         97,133.10$     
Training- Programing and Installation, AutoRead Program Operations 4 200.00$         800.00$           

Total 114,660.27$   
G.S.T 5,733.01$        
Grand Total 120,393.28$   


Sheet1

		Item		Units		Price		Total

		FL7502-RF FieldLogic Handheld Device		1		$   16,727.17		$   16,727.17

		Flexnet Smartpoint 510 - M (Radios)		410		$   236.91		$   97,133.10

		Training- Programing and Installation, AutoRead Program Operations		4		$   200.00		$   800.00

						Total		$   114,660.27

						G.S.T		$   5,733.01

						Grand Total		$   120,393.28







3-YEAR IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
Year 1

Purchase FL7502-RF FieldLogic Handheld Device
Complete necessary training for program operation and radio programing 

Cost:
FL7502-RF FieldLogic Handheld Device                    16,727.17$ 
Training 800.00$       
Total 17,527.17$ 
G.S.T 876.36$       
Grand Total 18,403.53$ 

Training:
4 Hours hands on training by certified Sensus Technical Support Specialist

Years 2 & 3
Purchase 1/2 of replacement radios per year (205 per year)
Public works will remove and replace radios throughout the year
Target: 15-20 Radio installations per month

Annual Cost
205 Flexnet Smartpoint 510-M Radios 48,566.55$ 
Total 48,566.55$ 
G.S.T 2,428.33$    
Grand Total 50,994.88$ 

Annual Installation Hours
2 Public Works personnel at 1 hour per installation (conservative estimate) 410 Hours


Sheet1

		Year 1

				Purchase FL7502-RF FieldLogic Handheld Device

				Complete necessary training for program operation and radio programing 

		Cost:

				FL7502-RF FieldLogic Handheld Device                    		$   16,727.17

				Training		$   800.00

				Total		$   17,527.17

				G.S.T		$   876.36

				Grand Total		$   18,403.53

		Training:

				4 Hours hands on training by certified Sensus Technical Support Specialist

		Years 2 & 3

				Purchase 1/2 of replacement radios per year (205 per year)

				Public works will remove and replace radios throughout the year

				Target: 15-20 Radio installations per month

		Annual Cost

				205 Flexnet Smartpoint 510-M Radios		$   48,566.55

				Total		$   48,566.55

				G.S.T		$   2,428.33

				Grand Total		$   50,994.88

		Annual Installation Hours

				2 Public Works personnel at 1 hour per installation (conservative estimate)		410 Hours







5-YEAR IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
Purchase FL7502-RF FieldLogic Handheld Device
Complete necessary training for program operation and radio programing 

Cost:
FL7502-RF FieldLogic Handheld Device                    16,727.17$ 
Training 800.00$       
Total 17,527.17$ 
G.S.T 876.36$       
Grand Total 18,403.53$ 

Training:
4 Hours hands on training by certified Sensus Technical Support Specialist

Years 2-5
Purchase 1/4 of replacement radios per year (103 per year)
Public works will remove and replace radios throughout the year
Target: 8-10 Radio installations per month

Annual Cost
103 Flexnet Smartpoint 510-M Radios 24,401.73$ 
Total 24,401.73$ 
G.S.T 1,220.09$    
Grand Total 25,621.82$ 

Annual Installation Hours
2 Public Works personnel at 1 hour per installation (conservative estimate) 206 Hours


Sheet1

		Year 1

				Purchase FL7502-RF FieldLogic Handheld Device

				Complete necessary training for program operation and radio programing 

		Cost:

				FL7502-RF FieldLogic Handheld Device                    		$   16,727.17

				Training		$   800.00

				Total		$   17,527.17

				G.S.T		$   876.36

				Grand Total		$   18,403.53

		Training:

				4 Hours hands on training by certified Sensus Technical Support Specialist

		Years 2-5

				Purchase 1/4 of replacement radios per year (103 per year)

				Public works will remove and replace radios throughout the year

				Target: 8-10 Radio installations per month

		Annual Cost

				103 Flexnet Smartpoint 510-M Radios		$   24,401.73

				Total		$   24,401.73

				G.S.T		$   1,220.09

				Grand Total		$   25,621.82

		Annual Installation Hours

				2 Public Works personnel at 1 hour per installation (conservative estimate)		206 Hours







INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS

• 2 PUBLIC WORKS PERSONNEL: FOR LIABILITY AND SAFETY REASONS WE ALWAYS SEND TWO PEOPLE

• REMOVE AND REPLACE RADIO: THIS PROCESS IS STRAIGHT FORWARD REMOVING RADIO FROM THE WALL 
WHICH IT IS ATTACHED, DISCONNECT 3 COMMUNICATION WIRES. ATTACH NEW RADIO TO THE WALL, AND 
RECONNECT WIRES.

• PROGRAM RADIO: THIS STEP IS DONE WITH THE HANDHELD DEVICE, THIS ACTIVATES THE RADIO AND SETS THE 
DESIRED PARAMETERS.

• DOCUMENTATION: FILL OUT DESIGNATED DOCUMENTATION, THIS TRACKS INSTALL DATE AND LOCATION, 
RADIO SERIAL NUMBER AS WELL AS WHICH METER AND REGISTER IT IS PAIRED WITH.

• TIMEFRAME: 1 HOUR IS A CONSERVATIVE ESTIMATE, ACCESSIBILITY WILL BE THE BIGGEST FACTOR WHEN IT 
COMES TO INSTALLATION TIME. A PERFECT SCENARIO WOULD SEE THESE RADIOS REPLACED IN 20 MINS.



ADVANCED 
TECHNOLOGY 

AVAILABLE
M400-D FLEXNET BASESTATION

• ELIMINATES THE NEED TO DO DRIVE BY 
COLLECTIONS

• CONTINUOUS MONITORING PROVIDES A 
GREATER LEVEL OF SERVICE: BACK FLOW 
ALERTS, TAMPER ALERTS, AND LEAK DETECTION

• USE OF THE HANDHELD DEVICE WOULD STILL 
BE NECESSARY TO INSTALL RADIOS



QUESTIONS?



 
 

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
JANUARY 11, 2023 

  
 
PUBLIC HEARING BYLAW NO. 1399/23 
A public hearing was held for Bylaw No. 1399/23.  Bylaw No. 1399/23 is a bylaw of Lacombe County to 
amend the Lacombe County Land Use Bylaw, Bylaw No. 1237/17 as it relates to land use designation 
on Pt. SW 31-39-25-W4M and the Dow Chemical Rail Yard expansion. 
 
Following the public hearing, Bylaw No. 1399/23 was given second and third reading and so passed. 
 
DWELLINGS ON AGRICULTURAL ‘A’ DISTRICT PARCELS 
Council received an overview of the feedback received from the community consultations regarding 
Dwellings on Agricultural ‘A’ District Parcels that were held in November and December 2023. 
 
By resolution of Council, Administration was directed to draft bylaw changes to the Municipal 
Development Plan and Land Use Bylaw to allow two dwellings on Agricultural ‘A’ District Parcels of 10 
acres in size or larger.  The proposed bylaw changes will be presented for Council’s consideration of 
first reading in February 2024.   
 
PLANNING SERVICES UPDATE 
Council received an update on the progress and activities of the Planning Services Department for 
2023. 
 
DECEMBER 5, 2023 COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING NOTES 
The following recommendations from the December 5, 2023 Committee of the Whole Meeting received 
Council approval: 
 

• The Paid Parking Program Review was received for information.  The County Manager was 
directed to obtain more in-depth data regarding users of the paid parking program for 
consideration at a future Council meeting.   

• The County Manager was directed to prepare a report and recommendation regarding options 
for future expansion of water servicing to the Blackfalds Joint Economic Area, for consideration 
at a future Council meeting. 

• The Alberta Association of Community Peace Officers (AACPO) presentation was received for 
information.  A representative of the Peace Officer Program, Public Safety, and Emergency 
Services will be invited to present at a future Committee of the Whole meeting subsequent to 
the County receiving the report commissioned by the AACPO on the safety of Community 
Peace Officers in carrying out their assigned duties. 

• The Subdivision Policies presentation was received for information. 
• The Community Organizations Property Tax Exemption Regulations presentation was received 

for information.  
• The Pictography presentation was received for information.   

 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                      
 
 
  
 

 RR 3, Lacombe, AB T4L 2N3 (Tel) 403.782.6601 (Fax) 403.782.3820 www.lacombecounty.com 
 

CORPORATE BUSINESS PLAN 
The Lacombe County 2022-2027 Corporate Business Plan was presented to Council.  The Corporate 
Business Plan identifies specific initiatives that address each of the four strategic goals established by 
Council and sets out the timelines for completing each initiative. The Corporate Business Plan is 
intended to be a fluid document and, as such, will be updated annually.   
 
COUNTY MANAGER EVALUATION – ESTABLISH PROCESS AND SET DATE 
The annual performance evaluation of the County Manager will be informed by Councillors on an 
individual basis for compilation and review by the Reeve, Deputy Reeve, and County Manager on 
February 8, 2024. 
 
OPPORTUNITY TO MEET WITH MINISTER OF MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS 
Council will request to meet with the Honourable Ric McIver, Minister of Municipal Affairs, during the 
2024 Spring RMA Convention in Edmonton.   
 
CORRESPONDENCE WITH MINISTERS REGARDING TAXATION ON OIL AND GAS 
DEVELOPMENT 
In follow-up to discussions held at the RMA Fall Convention, a letter will be sent to the Honourable 
Brian Jean, Minister of Energy and Minerals, and the Honourable Ric McIver, Minister of Municipal 
Affairs, to reiterate Council’s concern regarding taxation on oil and gas development.   
 
LETTER FROM MINISTER SCHULZ REGARDING DROUGHT 
Council authorized the establishment of a committee, comprised of representatives from all County 
departments, for the purpose of developing a Drought Risk Management and Response Plan for 
Lacombe County.  This initiative is in response to a letter from the Honourable Rebecca Schulz, 
Minister of Environment and Protected Areas, requesting municipal action regarding the current drought 
conditions in Alberta.   
 
RMA SPRING CONVENTION 
Council will attend the 2024 RMA Spring Convention that will be held at the Edmonton Convention 
Centre March 18 – 20, 2024. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT UPDATE 
Council received an update on the progress and activities related to Economic Development in the 
County.   
 
2024-2026 ASPHALT LINE PAINTING 
The County Manager was authorized to award the 2024-2026 Asphalt Line Painting and Other Works 
tender to 624091 Alberta Ltd. o/a RanN Maintenance Western Division in the amount of $249,692.14. 
 
POLICY OP(20) BRIDGE MATERIAL SALES – UPDATE 
Council approved amendments to Policy OP(20) Bridge Material Sales to increase credit limits for 
customers who purchase bridge materials on approved credit.   
 
ALIX NATURE TRAIL FUNDING REQUEST 
A motion to approve an annual operating grant to the Alix Nature Trail Society in the amount of $13,000 
for the operations and maintenance of the Alix Nature Trail did not receive Council approval.   
 
 



                                                                                      
 
 
  
 

 RR 3, Lacombe, AB T4L 2N3 (Tel) 403.782.6601 (Fax) 403.782.3820 www.lacombecounty.com 
 

TOWN OF BLACKFALDS AND LACOMBE COUNTY RECREATION FACILITIES OPERATIONAL 
COST-SHARING AGREEMENT 
Council approved The Town of Blackfalds and Lacombe County Recreation Facilities Operational Cost-
Sharing Agreement as presented. 
 
BYLAW NO. 1405/24 LACOMBE COUNTY 2024 RATES AND FEES BYLAW 
Council moved first, second, and third readings of Bylaw No. 1405/24 Lacombe County 2024 Rates and 
Fees. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Next Regular Council Meeting is 
January 25, 2023 – 9:00 a.m. 

 
Next Committee of the Whole Meeting is 

February 6, 2023 – 9:00 a.m. 
                                                    

Lacombe County Administration Building 
 

**For more details from Lacombe County Council meetings, please refer to the meeting 
minutes. All meeting minutes are posted on the website (www.lacombecounty.com)  

after approval.  

http://www.lacombecounty.com/


 
 

         Information Bulletin 
Monkey Top Fire 

Update January 16, 2024 
 

Today at approximately 1:30am first responders from the Bentley Fire Department responded to a fire 
at the Monkey Top Saloon in Bentley.  
 
Fire Fighting efforts were supported by Bentley, Lacombe County, City of Lacombe, Blackfalds, and 
Eckville Fire Departments. The fire is under control and has been isolated to the Monkey Top and 
liquor store building. We are thankful for the support of our local and neighboring fire departments. 
 
The investigation into the cause of the fire is ongoing and nothing has been determined at this time. In 
addition, based on what we know there are no casualties, and no one was injured in the fire. It is a sad 
day for Bentley as we have lost another important historical building. Just over a year ago we 
experienced the loss of the iconic grain elevator and today we have lost the Monkey Top.  
 
The original building Putland & Thorp site was destroyed by a fire in 1919. The gentlemen who 
owned this store were Archie Putland and Frank (Cappy) Thorp. Cappy was the first Mayor when 
Bentley was first incorporated into a village in 1915. 
 
The Putland & Thorp building was replaced by the Bentley Co-Operative under the management of 
Mr. Bolton, and lastly by Chas MacDougall. The business was sold to WM. A. Holmes in 1933 and 
operated as the Bentley Mercantile. In the early years supplies were brought in by train and picked up 
by horse and dray and delivered to the store. Later Mr. Holmes purchased a truck and would drive to 
Edmonton for supplies. Store merchants were well known for carrying credit for many customers 
during the 1930 depression years. Nostalgic memories include the smell of freshly oiled floors, buying 
a slab of cheese cut from the bulk cheese cutter, seeing bananas hanging from the ceiling and the fact 
that Mr. Holmes would deliver groceries with his Chevrolet car in the Lockhart area where he could be 
greeted with an invitation to stay for a home cooked meal.  
 
The building has stood for many years and most recently, until today as the Monkey Top a staple for 
residents, tourists, and visitors regardless of if they were the leather worn, done it all biker or the time 
worn seen it all senior or families having a meal with their kids after checking out the amazing 
businesses or farmers market in Bentley. It was a place of celebration for our hockey and ball teams 
and for the parents who drive their kids to and from games and practices. The Monkey Top was not 
just a place to gather, but a place where it did not matter what your background or style is. It was a 
place of spirited declaration of independence and togetherness.  
 
Mayor and Council, along with administration would like to thank the first responders for their efforts 
to keep the community safe and ensure that the fire was isolated to the Monkey Top Building. Our 
empathy also goes out to the property owner for their loss and the challenges ahead in working with 
insurance.  
 
Sincerely, 
Marc Fortais 
Chief Administrative Officer 

Box 179, Bentley AB T0C 0J0 
Ph. 403.748.4044 | Fx. 403.748.3213 

info@TownofBentley.ca 
www.TownofBentley.ca 

mailto:info@TownofBentley.ca
http://www.townofbentley.ca/









	Agenda -January 23, 2024 - Regular Council Meeting.pdf
	January 23, 2024- Regular Meeting of Council - Minutes of January 9 2024
	Cheque Listing - Chqs 20240013 to 20240032
	Unfinished Business - Bentley Community Hall  rec application 2024 Grant
	Unfinished Business - Bentley Minor Hockey 2024 Grant Request
	New Business - Medicing Lodge Ski Hill Master Plan - Club Presentation - Response to Masterplan  - 23Jan2024
	WHAT NOW? WHAT’S NEXT?
	THANK YOU!
	THE MASTER PLAN
	THE MASTER PLAN
	CLUB FUNCTION & GOVERNANCE
	SKI HILL & FACILITY OPERATIONS
	A REGIONAL ATTRACTION!
	OTHER ACTIVITIES
	GOOD NEIGHBOURS!
	WORKING WITH BENTLEY
	SEE YOU ON THE HILL!

	New Business - Public Works Report - General Report
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14

	New Business - Public Works Report - Parks & Safety Update January 2024
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	New Business - Public Works Report - Water Meter Radio and handheld Replacement Strategy
	Water Meter Radio and handheld Replacement Strategy
	Why is it important to Replace our current radios and handheld?
	Why is it important to Replace our current radios and handheld?
	Annual revenue generated from utility billing
	Current Utility Billing Process
	What the new process would look like
	Current equipment
	Current equipment
	Current equipment
	Proposed New Equipment
	Proposed New Equipment
	Cost of Replacement
	3-year implementation plan
	5-year implementation plan
	Installation requirements
	advanced technology available
	Questions?

	Correspondance - Lacombe County Council Highlights January 11, 2024
	Correspondance - Information Bulletin - Monkey Top Fire January 16 2024
	Other Business - Calgary Outdoor Adventure Show

